
 
 
1. MOTI
 
Recomm
 
That Cou
subject m
property 
council, b
 

 
2. MOTI
 
 
3. MOM
 
 
4. ADDI
 
 
5. DISC

ACT 
 
 
6. MINU
 
 6.1  
   
Recomm
 
THAT the
 

 
 
7. PUBL

 
 
8. PRES
  
 
9. REPO
 

9.1  

ION TO CON

endation 

uncil conven
matter that f
of the muni

board, comm

ION TO RECO

ENT OF SILE

TIONS TO TH

LOSURE OF

UTES OF PRE

Council M
 

endation 

e minutes of 

Council M

LIC MEETING

SENTATIONS

ORTS 

CAO – no

VENE INTO C

ne into Clos
falls under t
icipality or lo
mittee or othe

ONVENE IN O

ENCE 

HE AGENDA

F PECUNIAR

EVIOUS MEE

Meeting Minu

the following

Meeting May 2

GS 

S/DELEGATIO

reports 

TO
COUN

MO

CLOS
WILM

REGU
C

CLOSED SE

sed Session
the Municip

ocal board, a
er body may 

OPEN SESS

A 

RY INTEREST

ETINGS 

tes May 25, 2

g meeting be

25, 2015. 

ONS 

 
OWNSHIP OF
NCIL MEETIN
ONDAY, JUN

 
SED COUNC

MOT COMMU
5:45 P.

ULAR COUNC
COUNCIL CHA

7:00 P.

SSION  

on Monday
al Act 2001,

and Section 
y hold a close

ION 

T UNDER TH

2015 

e adopted as

F WILMOT 
NG AGENDA
NE 1, 2015 

CIL MEETING
UNITY ROOM
M. 
CIL MEETING
AMBERS 
M. 

y, June 1, 20
, Section 23
239 (2) (g) a
ed meeting u

HE MUNICIP

s presented:

A 

G 
M 

G 

015 at 5:45 
39 (2) (a) th
a matter in re
under anothe

AL CONFLIC

P.M. to con
e security o
espect of wh
er Act.  

CT OF INTER

nsider 
of the 
hich a 

REST 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, June 1, 2015 2 

 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 REPORT NO. CL2015-15 

Baden Corn Festival and Baden Fire Fighters Association Co-ed Slo-Pitch 
Baseball Tournament Noise By-Law Exemption and  
Amending By-law 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Schedule A of By-law No. 2007-17 be amended to include the Baden Corn Festival and 
Baden Firefighters Association Co-ed Slo-Pitch Baseball Tournament. 
 
  
   9.2.2 REPORT NO. CL2015-16 
     Independent Electricity System Operator (IESO) 

FIT Program 
Request for Municipal Support 
Re Rooftop Solar Applications 
Wilmot Township 

 
Recommendation 
 
WHEREAS Green Energy Cooperatives of Ontario (GECO) (the “Applicant”)  proposes to 
construct and operate several rooftop solar PV systems, (the “Projects”) on 66, 108, 116, 124, 132, 
140 and 148 Hincks Street, New Hamburg (the “Lands”) in the Township of Wilmot under the 
Province’s FIT  Program. (Attached as Schedule ’A’ to this report.) 
 
AND WHEREAS Solar Power Network (the “Applicant”) proposes to construct and operate rooftop 
solar PV systems, (the “Projects”) on 65 Heritage Drive and 30 Marvin Street, New Hamburg  (the 
“Lands”) in the Township of Wilmot under the Province’s FIT  Program. (Attached as Schedule ’B’ 
to this report.) 
 
AND WHEREAS the Applicants have requested that the Council of The Township of Wilmot 
indicate by resolution, Council’s support for the construction and operation of the projects on the 
lands, 
 
AND WHEREAS  pursuant to the FIT Rules, Version 4.0, Applications whose Projects receive the 
formal support of Local Municipalities will be awarded Priority Points, which may result in the 
Applicants being offered a FIT Contract prior to other Persons applying for FIT Contracts; 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, 
 
THAT the Council of The Township of Wilmot supports the construction and operation of the 
Projects on the Lands.  
 
AND FURTHER THAT all requests for municipal support for the Province’s FIT Program shall 
continue to be considered by Council on an individual basis, 
 
AND FURTHER THAT this resolution’s sole purpose is to enable the Applicant to receive Priority 
Points under the FIT Program and may not be used for the purpose of any other form of municipal 
approval in relation to the Application or Projects, or for any other purpose. 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, June 1, 2015 3 

9.3  FINANCE   
 
  9.3.1 REPORT NO. FIN 2015-22 
    Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot application to Canada 150 Community Infrastructure Program for 
trail development within the WRC Woodlot and Schmidt Woods be endorsed. 
 

   
9.4  PUBLIC WORKS   

 
   9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-2015-14 
     Phragmites Control in the Laurel Creek Headwaters 
     Environmentally Sensitive Landscape 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township of Wilmot authorize Region of Waterloo staff to work on the Wilmot Line and 
Carmel-Koch road allowances, within the Laurel Creek Headwaters ESL, to undertake a control 
program for Phragmites. 
 
 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES  
 
  9.5.1 REPORT NO. DS 2015-21 
    Beckdale Trailways and Schmidt Woods 
 

Recommendation 
 

1. THAT Council accept the generous donation of lands from the Schmidt Estate for the purposes 
of trails and parklands as follows: 

 
1. Schmidt Woods (Parts 1&2, 58R-18339); 

 
2. Beckdale North Trailway (Parts 1, 2 & 3, 58R-18335); 

 
3. Beckdale South Trailway & Gateway Park (Part 3, 58R-18584 and Parts 1, 2 & 3,   58R-

18304); and, 
 

4. Beckdale Lane & Path (Parts 1 & 2, 58R-18584 and Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5, 58R-13806) 
 
2. THAT Council agree to convey an easement over the future Beckdale Lane in favour of the 

properties abutting the lane and subject to the conditions of use, maintenance and future 
construction identified within the document attached as Appendix C to this report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, June 1, 2015 4 

  9.5.2 REPORT NO. DS 2015-22 
  Zone Change Application 07/15 

Craig McInally 
Lot 130 and Part of Lot 129, Plan 627 
Parts 2 and 3, Plan 58R-4327 
55 Snyder’s Road West, Baden 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT Zone Change Application 07/15 made by Craig McInally, affecting Lot 130 and Part of Lot 
129, Plan 627, being Parts 2 and 3, Plan 58R-4237, be approved to permit a dwelling unit to be 
located within an accessory building and to reduce the required off-street parking spaces for the 
property to a minimum of five spaces. 
 
 
   9.5.3 REPORT NO. DS 2015-23 
     Partial Release of Safety Berm Easement 
     Lot 46, Plan 58M-495 
     96 Smith’s Creek Drive, New Hamburg 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT the Township release the Safety Berm Easement between the Township of Wilmot and the 
owner(s) of 96 Smith’s Creek Drive from the title of Lot 46, Plan 58M-495 as it applies to the 
portion said lands where the berm has not been constructed, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. That, prior to registration of the release, the Township of Wilmot be advised by the Region of 

Waterloo that they have no objection to the release; 
2. That the applicant be responsible to provide, at no cost to the Township, revised engineering 

drawings to reflect the modified berm and lot grading and drainage on Lot 96; 
3. That the applicant be responsible for all costs associated with the preparation and registration 

of a reference plan to describe the lands to be released; 
4. That the applicant be responsible for all costs related to the preparation and registration of the 

release by the Township or that the applicant prepare and register the release of the 
agreement at no cost to the Township of Wilmot. 

 
   
9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES – no reports 

 
  
 9.7  FIRE – no reports 
 
    

9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE – no reports 
 
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE – no correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Agenda Monday, June 1, 2015 5 

11. BY-LAWS  
 

11.1 By-law No. 2015-35 – Zone Change Application 07/15, Craig McInally, Lot 130 and Part 
of Lot 129, Plan 627, Parts 2 and 3, Plan 58R-4327, 55 Snyder’s Road West, Baden 

11.2 By-law No. 2015-36 – By-Law to Amend Schedule A of By-Law 2007-17, Permanent 
Exemptions To The Noise By-Law 

 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law Nos. 2015-35 and 2015-36 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in 
Open Council. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2015-37 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT By-law No. 2015-37 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on June 1, 
2015 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT 
 
Recommendation 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 



 
 
 
Members

 
Staff Pres

 
 
1. MOTI
 

 
2. MOTI
 
 
3. MOM
 
 
4. ADDI
 

4.1 R
 

C
M

 
Resolutio
 
Moved by
 
THAT the
Report C
 

 
 
5. DISC

ACT 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

s Present: Ma
M.

sent: Chief 
B. Mc
Direct
Develo
Plann

ION TO CON

ION TO RECO

ENT OF SILE

TIONS TO TH

REPORT 9.2.1

Corresponden
Municipal Dra

on No. 2015-

y:  M. Murray

e above doc
L2015-14 be 

LOSURE OF

ayor L. Arms
. Murray 

Administrati
Leod, Deput
tor of Faci
opment Serv
er/EDO A. M

VENE INTO C

ONVENE IN O

ENCE 

HE AGENDA

1 – REPORT 

nce Relative
ain 2015 

110 

y    

cument rece
added to the

F PECUNIAR

TO
COUN

MO

REGU
C

strong, Coun

ion Officer G
ty Clerk D. M
lities and 

vices H. O’Kr
artin 

CLOSED SE

OPEN SESS

A 

NO. Addend

e to the Con

  

ived in rega
e Agenda. 

RY INTEREST

 
OWNSHIP OF
NCIL MEETIN
ONDAY, MAY

 
ULAR COUNC
COUNCIL CHA

7:00 P.

ncillors A. Ju

G. Whittingto
Mittelholtz, D

Recreation 
rafka, Fire C

SSION  

ION 

dum to Repo

nsideration o

        

ards to REPO

T UNDER TH

F WILMOT 
NG MINUTES
Y 25, 2015 

CIL MEETING
AMBERS 
M. 

unker, P. Roe

n, Director o
Director of Pu

Services S
Chief M. Rain

rt CL2015-14

of the Engin

Seconde

ORT 9.2.1 –

HE MUNICIP

S 

G 

e, B, Fisher, J

of Clerk’s Ser
ublic Works 
S. Nancekiv
e, Director o

4 

neer’s Repor

ed by: B. Fish

– REPORT N

AL CONFLIC

J. Gerber,  

rvices  
G. Charbon

vell, Directo
of Finance R

rt, Trussler 

her 

NO. Addendu

CARR

CT OF INTER

neau, 
or of 
. Tse, 

Road 

um to 

RIED. 

REST 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 2 

6. MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETINGS 
 
 6.1  Council Meeting Minutes May 11, 2015 
    
Resolution No. 2015-111 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe                Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the minutes of the following meeting be adopted as presented: 
 

Council Meeting May 11, 2015. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
7. PUBLIC MEETINGS 

 
7.1 REPORT NO. DS 2015-20 

Zone Change Application 09/15 
Louise Guthrie 
Part of Lot 7, Concession North of Erb’s Road 
97 Clarence Avenue, St. Agatha 

 
Resolution No. 2015-112 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe                Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT Zone Change Application 09/15 made by Louise Guthrie, affecting Part of Lot 7, Concession 
North of Erb’s Road, to permit a second dwelling unit to be located within the existing single 
detached dwelling on the subject property, be approved. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
Mayor Armstrong declared the public meeting open and stated that Council would hear all interested 
parties who wished to speak. He indicated that if the decision of Council is appealed to the Ontario 
Municipal Board, the Board has the power to dismiss an appeal if individuals do not speak at the public 
meeting or make written submissions before the by-law is passed. 
 
Mayor Armstrong stated that persons attending as delegations at this meeting are required to leave their 
names and addresses which will become part of the public record and advised that this information may 
be posted on the Township’s official website. 
 
The Planner/EDO highlighted the report. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if there were questions of a technical nature from Council.  There were none. 
 
Mayor Armstrong asked if the applicant wished to address Council.  The applicant did not address 
Council.   
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked twice if anyone else wished to address Council, and in the absence of any 
comments, declared the public meeting to be closed. 
 
 

9. PRESENTATIONS/DELEGATIONS 
  
  



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 3 

9. REPORTS 
 

9.1  CAO – no reports 
 
 
 9.2  CLERKS  
 
   9.2.1 Addendum to Report CL2015-14 
     Consideration of Engineer’s Report 

For the Trussler Road Municipal Drain 2015 
Parts of Lots 1 and 2, German Block North of Bleams Road 
Township of Wilmot 
And Parts of Lots 46 and 129, German Company Tract 
City of Kitchener 
Region of Waterloo 

 
Resolution No. 2015-113 
 
Moved by: P. Roe                 Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT the Drainage Engineer’s Report dated April 29, 2015 for the Trussler Road Municipal Drain, 
for improved drainage in Parts of Lots 1 and 2, German Block North of Bleams Road, Township of 
Wilmot, and Parts of Lots 46 and 129, German Company Tract, City of Kitchener, Region of 
Waterloo, be adopted;  
 
THAT Provisional By-law 2015-30 is hereby given first and second reading in Open Council; and 
further, 
 
THAT the date for the Court of Revision be scheduled for Monday, June 22, 2015 at 7:00 pm and 
that Mayor L. Armstrong, Councillor A. Junker, Councillor B. Fisher (as an alternate) and a 
representative from the Council of the City of Kitchener be appointed to the Court of Revision. 

CARRIED. 
 
 
Greg Nancekivell addressed Council on behalf of Dietrich Engineering.  He explained the process and 
purpose of the Drainage Act and provided a brief history of this petition with reference to the applicable 
provisions of the Act and the specific meetings held with affected property owners.  Mr. G. Nancekivell 
highlighted the maps included with the Engineer’s Report with details of the works being proposed.  He 
concluded his presentation with a summary of the allowances on page five of the Engineer’s Report. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked Council if they had any questions of a technical nature.  There were none. 
 
Patrick Kraemer from Duncan Linton, LLP addressed Council as a representative of an assessed land 
owner, Mr. Choi.  He advised Council that Mr. Choi has attended six different meetings relative to this 
drainage petition to avail himself of every opportunity to understand this project.  He clarified that he has 
contacted Dietrich Engineering on behalf of Mr. Choi since the May 11, 2015 Council Meeting.  Mr. 
Kraemer reiterated that he is requesting that the petition and the Engineer’s Report be set aside since he 
feels it is in contravention of the Planning Act.  He asserted that the storm water management must be 
addressed through the subdivision agreement and that there is no provision within the Planning Act for 
storm water to be managed through the Drainage Act.  He noted that the details in the Engineer’s Report 
regarding the municipal drain accommodating the future plans to expand Trussler Road are contradictory 
to the Drainage Act which is concerned only with current water drainage, not future needs.  His concerns 
also were with the question of how the assessment of future drain maintenance will be handled with the 
possible thousand land owners in the Activa development.  Mr. Kraemer stated that the drain should not 
go across Mr. Choi’s property, he does not want it across his property.  He further stated that Mr. Choi 
received no benefit for the drain, that the location was simply the cheapest option, that the allowances 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 4 

were miscalculated and that the land value is not the fair market value.  He concluded his presentation by 
reiterating that the concerns presented are not just technical issues and that they should be addressed 
given that the Engineer’s Report is not correct.  He requested that the Engineer’s Report be rejected or, 
at least, sent back for reconsideration. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong stated for those in attendance that the petitions do now have the right to withdraw 
their names from the petition and any other land owners has the right to add their name to the petition.  
No petitioners or land owners came forward. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong asked if any other land owners wished to address Council. 
 
Jennifer Voss from Activa Holdings Inc. confirmed that Council had received correspondence from their 
solicitor, Goodmans LLP.  She reiterated the solicitor’s comments that the Drainage Act has the authority 
to deal with this legal drainage outlet and requested that the Engineer’s Report be approved. 
 
Councillor B. Fisher asked the Director of Development Services or the Planner/EDO to provide their 
opinion on the comments raised concerning the Planning Act in this matter. 
 
The Director of Development Services advised that the application under the Planning Act from Activa for 
their development in the City of Kitchener has been approved by the Ontario Municipal Board.  He stated 
his opinion that the Planning Act is not a factor in this matter given that approval has been granted but 
noted that he is not an expert on municipal drainage and the Drainage Act. 
 
Mr. G. Nancekivell noted that a small calculation error was made in the Report relative to the Choi 
assessment/allowance in the amount of $150.00 which he stated is not significant enough to warrant 
reconsideration of the Report but could be addressed during the Court of Revision with $150.00 being 
added to their allowance.  He confirmed that the Planning Act is not applicable in this matter and he cited 
a case file from 2012 which approved a similar Engineer’s Report that was being appealed on the same 
grounds.  He reiterated that the allowances are not for 100% of the fair market value since the lands are 
returned back to previous use.  He advised Council that the missing column noted in the solicitor’s letter 
was addressed in the body of the report.  With regards to assessment he confirmed that this is not the 
venue for the discussion but that appeals may be made at the Court of Revision.  With respect to 
rerouting the drain off of Mr. Choi’s property, Mr. Nancekivell stated that the cost of such a project would 
likely be over one million dollars.  He concluded by requesting Council provide direction as to what 
sections of the Report are to be reconsidered if the motion is to reconsider the report. 
 
Councillor J. Gerber inquired if any representatives from the City of Kitchener or Region of Waterloo were 
present. 
 
Steve van De Keere, Director of Transportation for the Region of Waterloo stated that the Region is in 
support of the Engineer’s Report. 
 
Steve Brickman from Dietrich Engineering confirmed for Councillor J. Gerber that he had spoken with Mr. 
Kraemer on May 19, 2015 regarding the Report. 
 
Mayor L. Armstrong provided Council with their options concerning the Engineer’s Report which included 
the recommendation in the staff report presented tonight directing the Report be reconsidered or the 
recommendation from the staff from May 11, 2015 approving the Report. 
 
Councillor J. Gerber’s inquired as to which recommendation staff is supporting following the solicitors’ 
correspondence and preceding discussion.  The Director of Clerk’s Services advised that at the time of 
writing Report CL2015-14 no confirmation had been given that communications took place between 
Dietrich Engineering and Mr. Choi or his representative.  She noted that all parties have had the 
opportunity to present to Council.  She iterated that if there are concerns for which ever recommendation 
is approved, that there is an appeal process available. 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 5 

Mayor L. Armstrong advised that Council may make a motion for either recommendation and it will be 
voted on but that if the motion is to reconsider the Report that direction would be needed as to what 
needs to be reconsidered. 
 
Councillor P. Roe noted that Council has heard from both sides but stated the difficulty in making a 
decision based on the opposing viewpoint of two equally reputable firms.  Councillor P. Roe then made a 
motion to approve the Engineer’s Report, give the Provisional By-law first and second reading and set the 
date for the Court of Revision. 
 
Councillor A. Junker noted his approval of the motion and stated that the appeal process is in place if 
required. 
 
Councillor B. Fisher also indicated his support for the motion and suggested that appeals may be made if 
deemed appropriate by the land owners. 
 
It was noted that the date for the Court of Revision has been rescheduled to June 22nd within the 
recommendation. 
 

9.3  FINANCE – no reports  
 
   
9.4  PUBLIC WORKS   

 
   9.4.1 REPORT NO. PW-2015-12 
     Zehr Municipal Drain Construction 
 
Resolution No. 2015-113 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber                Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT the tender submitted by Sebben AG Drainage Systems Ltd. for the construction of the Zehr 
Municipal Drain in the amount of $76,061.00, plus HST, be accepted. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

9.5  DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – no additional reports 
 
   
9.6  FACILITIES AND RECREATION SERVICES – no reports 

 
  
 9.7  FIRE – no reports 
 
    

9.8  CASTLE KILBRIDE – no reports 
 
 
10. CORRESPONDENCE – no correspondence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 6 

 
11. BY-LAWS  
 

11.1 By-law No. 2015-33 – Zone Change Application 09/15, Louise Guthrie, Part of Lot 11, 
Concession North of Erb’s Road, 97 Clarence Avenue, St. Agatha 

 
Resolution No. 2015-114 
 
Moved by:  J. Gerber                Seconded by: P. Roe 
 
THAT By-law No. 2015-33 be read a first, second and third time and finally passed in Open 
Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 

11.2 By-law No. 2015-15 – Zehr Municipal Drain 2015 
 
Resolution No. 2015-115 
 
Moved by:  M. Murray                Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT By-law No. 2015-15 be read a third and final time in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
12. NOTICE OF MOTIONS 
 
 
13. QUESTIONS/NEW BUSINESS/ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
13.1 Councillor J. Gerber noted the success of the Civitan Sports Waterloo Region Athlete of the Year 

Awards Banquet that occurred on May 20 at the Wilmot Recreation Complex.  The recognition of 
the Wilmot Aquatic Aces and the Firebirds, the honour of hosting and the positive feedback on 
the facility were highlights of the banquet. 

 
Mayor L. Armstrong advised Council that the event will be held throughout the Region on a 
rotating basis and will likely be back in Wilmot within a few years.  

 
 
14. BUSINESS ARISING FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
15. CONFIRMATORY BY-LAW 
 

15.1 By-law No. 2015-34 
 
Resolution No. 2015-116 
 
Moved by:  A. Junker                Seconded by: M. Murray 
 
THAT By-law No. 2015-34 to Confirm the Proceedings of Council at its Meeting held on May 25, 
2015 be introduced, read a first, second, and third time and finally passed in Open Council. 
 

CARRIED. 



Council Meeting Minutes Monday, May 25, 2015 7 

 
 
16. ADJOURNMENT (7:55 P.M.) 
 
Resolution No. 2015-117 
 
Moved by:  P. Roe                Seconded by: B. Fisher 
 
THAT we do now adjourn to meet again at the call of the Mayor. 
 

CARRIED. 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
               Mayor  
 
 
_______________________________  
               Clerk 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.1





dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.2.2















dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.3.1







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.4.1













 
 
 

Township of Wilmot 
REPORT 

 
 

 
REPORT NO.  DS 2015-21  
 
TO:   Council  
  
PREPARED BY:    Harold O’Krafka, Director of Development Services 
 
DATE:    June 1, 2015  
 
SUBJECT:  Proposed Conveyances to the Township of Wilmot 

   Beckdale Trailways and Schmidt Woods 
 
 
Recommendation: 
 
1. That Council accept the donation of lands from the Schmidt Estate, Shantz Mennonite 

Church and Mennonite Church Eastern Canada (MCEC) for the purposes of trails and 
parklands together as a package and described as follows: 

 
1. Schmidt Woods (Parts 1&2, 58R-18339); 

 
2. Beckdale North Trailway (Parts 1, 2 & 3, 58R-18335); 

 
3. Beckdale South Trailway & Gateway Park (Part 3, 58R-18584 and Parts 1, 2 & 3,   

58R-18304); and, 
 

4. Beckdale Lane & Path (Parts 1 & 2, 58R-18584 and Parts 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5, 58R-
13806) 

 
2.  That Council agree to convey an easement over the future Beckdale Lane in favour of 

the properties abutting the lane and subject to the conditions of use, maintenance 
and future construction identified within the draft document attached as Appendix C 
to this report.  

  
 
Background: 
 
Harold & Enid Schmidt and Beckdale Farms are synonymous with Baden to many people.  
While Harold was a long time school board trustee and served on Township Council for 24 
years, he and Enid were better known for their generous support of public projects and private 
charities in and around Baden.  Harold passed away at the age of 81 in 2001 and his wife Enid 
passed away in 2011. 
 
 

dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.1



Page 2 of 5 
 

As Council is aware the Schmidt’s Beckdale Farms had acquired a considerable land holding in 
Baden and area over the years.  Many of their land holdings had merged together on title 
notwithstanding the significant infrastructure spread throughout the properties.  Multiple homes, 
barns and driving sheds together with the MAX Canada building by the Baden pond are all 
collectively part of Schmidt Estate. 
 

 
 
Through discussions with between staff and representatives of the Estate the opportunity to 
honour the memory and legacy of Harold and Enid Schmidt and Beckdale Farms through the 
conveyance of parklands and trailways became an obvious and mutually beneficial opportunity.  
 
Council will recall the conveyance of a trail to the Township around Steinmann Mennonite 
Church Cemetery in 2012 which created a parcel of land to permit the significant expansion of 
the cemetery thereby ensuring its viability for many years to come.  That future trail will allow 
pedestrians and cyclists a means by which to avoid the busy intersection of Snyder’s Road / 
Waterloo Street / Nafziger Road. 
 
That exercise was a smaller part of a much larger exercise to divide the holdings into logical 
property units while creating a network of trails and parklands linking Baden and Waterloo-
Oxford to the Wilmot Recreation Complex. 
 
At this time the Schmidt Estate, Shantz Mennonite Church and MCEC are prepared to move 
forward with the full donation of 16.49ha (40.76 ac) of trails, parkland and a future street to the 
Township of Wilmot as a permanent tribute to the legacy of Harold and Enid Schmidt. 
 
 



Page 3 of 5 
 

Discussion: 
 
 In order to properly describe the package of conveyances staff have prepared the following 
written and visual summary of the conveyances for Council.  The conveyances have been 
grouped into Beckdale North Trailway & Schmidt Woods, Beckdale South Trailway & Gateway 
Park and Beckdale Lane. 
 
Beckdale North Trailway and Schmidt Woods (Appendix A) 
 
The largest single component of the conveyance package is Schmidt Woods.  Located adjacent 
to the Wilmot Recreation Complex this 12.6 ha (31ac) is a welcome addition which will afford 
the Township the opportunity to establish a significant volume of multi-use trails adjacent to the 
rec complex for walking, hiking, running, cross country skiing and other uses Council deems 
appropriate. 
 
The northerly Beckdale Trailway connects Waterloo-Oxford and the Brenneman Drive 
neighbourhood to Nafziger Road.  The lands provide the opportunity, combined with future 
reconstruction of Nafziger Road, to create a year round multi-use trail which effectively creates 
a spine around which future development can grow. 
 
The trailway conveyances recreate three previously existing separate properties (2 farms and a 
non-farm residential lot) in a manner which does not offend the short term viability of the farms 
while recognizing that growth over time will occur. 
 
It is envisioned that a future trailway from New Hamburg will similarly connect with the Nafziger 
Road Multi-Use Boulevard Trailway effectively linking both communities and the highschool with 
the Wilmot Recreation Complex. 
 
 
Beckdale South Trailway & Gateway Park (Appendix B) 
 
Beckdale South Trailway provides the opportunity for future trail linkages from Queen Street in 
Baden south to Nafziger Road and easterly along the Baden Creek to include the naturalized 
area along Foundry Street.   
 
These ‘gateway’ lands serve as a prominent opportunity for a future trailhead and park to be 
established for Baden residents and guests alike.  Within the trailhead/park staff envision the 
opportunity to include interpretive historical plaques to describe the history not only of Baden but 
also of the lands themselves highlighting the Beck Family, the Livingston Flaxmill, and the 
Schmidt Family. 
 
The linkages to Gingerich Road would connect the the components of the Beckdale South 
Trailway to provide a looping effect.  Further the connections to the planned multi-use trail 
envisioned on the north side of Gingerich Road allows connection to the Wilmot Recreation 
Complex and indeed to the components of the Beckdale North Trailway and future New 
Hamburg Trailway. 
 
 
 
 
 



Page 4 of 5 
 

Beckdale Lane (Appendix B) 
 
Beckdale Lane represents a reconveyance of lands acquired from the Township by Harold 
Schmidt to facilitate the construction of the MAX Canada building.  In addition to the former 
Louisa Street road allowance the Estate is proposing to convey a sufficient turnaround bulb to 
allow the logical and orderly construction of Beckdale Lane at some point in the future to 
municipal standards. 
 
An agreement has been drafted to accompany the transfer of these lands to ensure that in the 
interim the various lots abutting the street will enjoy access while ensuring that the Township is 
not responsible for the interim maintenance of the parcel (ie snowplowing etc…)  It is attached 
as Appendix C to this report. 
 
The agreement further provides that the future owner(s) of Lots 9-14, Plan 18 will be 
responsible for the costs of extending services and constructing Beckdale Lane to municipal 
standards at no cost to other abutting owners or the Township of Wilmot. 
 
A parcel of land conveyed along the rear of the lots of Plan 18 would allow a pedestrian linkage 
back to Foundry Street while providing a greenspace buffer between future homes and the light 
industrially designated lands abutting them. 
 
This pathway would logically cross the future Beckdale Lane and link north along the Baden 
pond and along King George Street to again create a looping effect of trailways within the 
Beckdale South Trailway. 
 
 
Strategic Plan Conformity: 
 
The acceptance of this donation achieves many of the strategies of the Township Strategic Plan 
including providing recreational opportunities for everyone, enhancing our mobility, and planning 
for growth while protecting farmland and green space. 
  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
Timing and funding for the future construction of these trails was included in the 2014 
Development Charges Study and Bylaw and the 2015 10yr Capital Forecast.   
 
The availability of Federal, Provincial and private funding opportunities would potentially 
accelerate the timing of construction. 
 
 
Conclusion: 
 
In conclusion, Township staff are very pleased to present these proposed conveyances to 
Township Council and recommend that the conveyances be accepted as a lasting tribute to the 
legacy of Harold and Enid Schmidt. 
 
The conveyances are, in the opinion of staff, of substantive long term benefit to Baden and the 
greater Wilmot Township community. 
 









 APPENDIX C 

THIS AGREEMENT made the    day of May, 2015. 
 
B E T W E E N: 
 
 
    Harold J. Schmidt Enterprises Inc. and Murray Pfeifer, Estate Trustee with a 
    Will of the Estate of the Late Enid Elizabeth Schmidt 
 
    (Hereinafter the “Owners”) 
 
    ‐and‐ 
 
 
 
    The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
 
    (Hereinafter the “Township”) 
 
 
  WHEREAS the Owners own Part of Lot 15 South of Snyder’s Road, Part of Louisa Street 

Closed  by  Judge’s  Order  Instrument  No.  1415489,  Part  of Mill  Street,  Registered  Plan  627 

Closed  by  Judge’s  Order  Instrument  No.  1474148  in  the  Township  of Wilmot  (Geographic 

Township  of  Wilmot)  in  the  Regional  Municipality  of  Waterloo  being  in  part  Parts  1‐5, 

Reference Plan 58R‐18306, Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo; 

 

  AND WHEREAS  the Owners  are  conveying  to  the  Township  Parts  1‐5 Reference  Plan 

58R‐18306, Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo; 

 

  IN  CONSIDERATION OF  THE  PAYMENT  TO  THE OWNERS BY  THE  TOWNSHIP  of ONE 

DOLLAR ($1.00) each, the parties hereto covenant and agree as follows: 

 

1.  The foregoing recitals are true in substance and fact. 

 

   



 2

2.  The Owners agree upon execution of this agreement by the parties hereto, to forthwith 

convey to the Township the lands legally described as Parts 1 and 5, Reference Plan 58R‐

18306 Township of Wilmot (PIN:  22193‐0177) and Parts 2 and 4 on Reference Plan 58R‐

18306, Township of Wilmot (PIN:  22193‐0183) and Part 3 on Reference Plan 58R‐18306, 

Township of Wilmot (PIN:  22193‐0182), Regional Municipality of Waterloo (collectively 

“Louisa Street and the Turnaround”) free and clear of all encumbrances at the Owners’ 

expense. 

 

3.  Until such time as the Council of the Township passes a by‐law to establish the Louisa 

Street and the Turnaround as a public highway Louisa Street and the Turnaround may 

continue to be used as access to: 

 

(a)  Pt Lot 15, Concession S of Snyders Road Wilmot; Pt Mill Pond Plan 627 Wilmot Pt 

1, 58R‐11508 Wilmot (PIN:  22193‐0162(R)); 

 

(b)  Lot  1,  Plan  18, Wilmot;  Part  Lot  2,  Plan  18, Wilmot;  Pt  2  on  58R‐11508;  S/T 

1457730 Wilmot (PIN:  22193‐0175 (LT)); 

 

(c)  Pt Lot 2‐8 Pl 18 Wilmot Pt 3 on 58R‐11508 S/T 1457730, Wilmot  (PIN:   22193‐

0174 (LT); 

 

(d)  Lots 15 and 16, Registered Plan 18, Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of 

Waterloo and Pt Lot 15, Con S of Snyders Road, Wilmot; Pt William Street Plan 

627 Closed by 694348 as in C16925; except Part 3 58R‐602 and 58G913;  Wilmot 

(PIN 22193:0182); 

 

(e)  Part 7, Plan 58R‐18307, Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo. 

 



 3

and the Owners acknowledge that the Township is not responsible for the maintenance 

and/or repair of Louisa Street and the Turnaround and the Owners and their respective 

invitees shall use the Louisa Street and the Turnaround at the Owners’ risk. 

 

4.  The Owners and the Township hereby covenant and agree that the proposed opening 

up of the former Louisa Street as “Beckdale Lane” by the Township will not occur unless 

and until the registered owner(s) or one, some or all of them, of Lots 9‐14 Registered 

Plan 18, Township of Wilmot, Regional Municipality of Waterloo or their successors or 

assigns  build  all  of  Louisa  Street  and  the  Turnaround  to  Township  specifications 

including extending services  to  the satisfaction of  the Township and  there shall be no 

obligation on the Part of the Owners of the Lands referred to  in Paragraphs 3(a) –  (e) 

above other  than  the  registered owners of Lots 9‐14 Registered Plan 18, Township of 

Wilmot as aforesaid to contribute to the construction or share in the cost of so building 

Louisa  Street  and  the  Turnaround  to  the  said  Township  specifications  including 

extending services to the said satisfaction of the Township. 

 

5.  The Township covenants and agrees with  the owners not  to put  in place a perimeter 

land reserve contiguous to Parts 1 to 5, Plan 58R‐18306. 

 

6.  This agreement shall enure to the benefit of and be binding upon the successors, heirs 

and assigns of the signatories below.  

 

DATED this    day of May, 2015. 

 

 

                           
Witness            Murray Pfeifer, Estate Trustee with a Will 
              of the Estate of the Late Enid Elizabeth 
              Schmidt 
 
 



 4

                           
Witness            Harold J. Schmidt Enterprises Inc. by its 
              authorized signing officer,  
              Murray Pfeifer 
 
 
                           
Witness            The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot 
 

 



dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.2







dawnm
Typewritten Text
9.5.3







 TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 

 BY-LAW NO. 2015-35 

BY-LAW TO FURTHER AMEND BY-LAW NO. 83-38 OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT BEING A 

ZONING BY-LAW FOR THE SAID TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT. 

  WHEREAS The Corporation of the Township of Wilmot deems it desirable to 

further amend By-law No. 83-38, being a Zoning By-law for the said Township of Wilmot. 

 NOW THEREFORE THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF 

THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 

1. The lands described on Schedule ‘A’ and illustrated on Schedule ‘B’, attached to and 

forming part of this by-law, may be used for the following accessory use in addition 

to the uses permitted in the zone in which the property is situate, as amended: 

a) one accessory apartment, self-contained within an accessory structure; 

2. Notwithstanding the provisions of By-law 83-38, the minimum number of off-street 

parking spaces required to be provided for the lands described on Schedule "A" and 

illustrated on Schedule "B" attached to and forming part of this by-law, shall be five 

(5). 

3. Except as amended by the preceding regulations, the lands described on Schedule 

"A" attached to and forming part of this by-law and shown on Schedule "B" attached 

to and forming part of this by-law, shall be subject to all other applicable regulations 

as set down in By-law No. 83-38, as amended.  

4. This by-law shall come into effect on the final passing thereof by the Council of The 

Corporation of the Township of Wilmot subject to compliance with the provisions of 

The Planning Act, R.S.O., 1990 and amendments thereto. 



READ a first and second time on the 1st day of June, 2015. 

READ a third time and finally passed in Open Council on the 1st day of June, 2015. 

 
 
 

       
    MAYOR 
 
 
 
       
  CLERK    



SCHEDULE "A" 

 

  ALL AND SINGULAR that certain parcel or tract of land and premises situate, lying 

and being in the Township of Wilmot, in the Regional Municipality of Waterloo and Province of Ontario 

being composed of Lot 130 and Part of Lot 129, Plan 627, being Parts 2 and 3, Plan 58R-4327 in the 

said Township of Wilmot. 

 

This is Schedule "A" to By-law No. 2015-35.   

PASSED this 1st day of June, 2015. 

 

 

       

  MAYOR 

 

       

  CLERK 

 
 



SCHEDULE "B"
LOT 130 AND PART OF LOT 129, PLAN 627

PARTS  2 AND 3, Plan 58R-4327
TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT

SUBJECT LANDS OUTLINED THUS:

THIS IS SCHEDULE "B" TO BY-LAW NO. 2015-35
PASSED THIS 1ST DAY OF JUNE, 2015.

MAYOR

CLERK´0 6 12 18

Meters

CHARLOTTA S
TREET

M
ILL STR

EET

SNYDER'S ROAD WEST

CN / G
EXR R

ailw
ay



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
BY-LAW NO. 2015-36 

 
BY-LAW TO AMEND SCHEDULE A OF BY-LAW 2007-17, 

PERMANENT EXEMPTIONS TO THE NOISE BY-LAW 
 

 
  WHEREAS the Municipal Council of the Corporation of the Township of 
Wilmot deems it expedient to amend Schedule A of By-law No. 2007-17, as hereinafter 
provided. 
 
  THEREFORE THE MUNICIPAL COUNCIL OF THE CORPORATION OF 
THE TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT ENACTS AS FOLLOWS: 
 

1. THAT Schedule A of By-law 2007-17 concerning Permanent Exemptions to the 
Noise By-law be amended to include the Baden Corn Festival and Baden 
Firefighters Association Co-ed Slo-Pitch Baseball Tournament as illustrated in 
the amended Schedule A attached. 
 

2. This By-law shall come into effect on the date of passage. 
 

READ a first and second time this 1st day of June, 2015. 
 
READ a third time and finally passed in Open Council this 1st day of June, 2015. 
 
 
 
____________________________ 
Mayor 
 
 
____________________________ 
Clerk 
  



SCHEDULE A TO BY-LAW 2007-17 
BY-LAW TO AMEND BY-LAW NO. 98-21, RESPECTING NOISE 

 
PERMANENT EXEMPTIONS TO NOISE BY-LAW 

TOWNSHIP OF WILMOT 
 
The following annual major event users of the Township of Wilmot’s Municipal Facilities 
are exempt from the provisions of the Noise By-law for the purpose of playing amplified 
music/noise: 
 
Official Canada Day Event Celebrations 
Mennonite Relief Sale 
Moparfest 
New Hamburg Fall Fair 
Official Victoria Day Event Celebrations 
Castle Kilbride Summer Concert Series  
Baden Corn Festival 
Baden Firefighters Association Co-ed Slo-Pitch Baseball Tournament 


	Agenda
	Minutes
	9.2.1
	9.2.2
	9.3.1
	9.4.1
	9.5.1
	9.5.1 Appendix A
	9.5.1 Appendix B
	9.5.1 Appendix C
	9.5.2
	9.5.3
	11.1
	11.2



